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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Privatization Holding Company - KPSC
State of Kuwait

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Privatization Holding Company - ICPSC ("the Parent
Company") and its subsidiaries ("the Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, and the related consolidated statement of income, income and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the financial year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the State of Kuwait, and
we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below as the key audit
matters.

Equity Method of Accounting
The Group has interests in number of associates
which are significant to the Group's consolidated
financial statements. The Group exercises significant
influence over its associates and consequently
accounts for under the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the Group's interests in the
associates are initially stated at cost, and are adjusted
thereafter for the post-acquisition changes in
Group's share of the net assets of the associates less
any impairment. The number of the associates
involved increases the complexity of the Group's
control enviromnent and our ability as Group's
auditors to obtain an appropriate level of
understanding of these entities including any related
party transactions. Due to these factors and the
significance of the investment in associates to the
Group's consolidated financial statements, we
consider this as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed such niatters

Our audit procedures included, among others,
determining the nature and extent of audit
procedures to be carried out for associates and
selecting significant associates based on the size
and/or risk profile of these entities. During our
audit, we communicated with the component
auditors. We also provided detailed instructions to
the component auditors covering the significant
areas and risks to be addressed including the
identification of related parties and transactions.
Furthermore, we evaluated the Group's
methodology and testing of the key assumptions
used by the Group in determining the associates'
recoverable amount based on value-in-use.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures in Notes 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EDO Al Nisf & Partners is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of
independent member firms.



Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Other information included in the Group's 2018 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included in
the Group's 2018 Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
detemiines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

BDOAl Nisf & Partners is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of
independent member firms.



Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting.̂  material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities ̂.or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Those Charged with Governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Those Charged with Governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDOAI Nisf & Partners is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of
independent member firms.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the consolidated
financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company's Board of
Directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further
report that we obtained all the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our
audit and that the consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the
Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations, as amended, and by the Parent
Company's Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory
was duly carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies
Law No. 1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations, as amended nor of the Parent Company's
Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during the year
ended 31 December 2018 that might have had a material effect on the business or financial position of
the Group.

Qais M. Al Nisf
License No. 38 "A"
EDO AlNisf& Partners

Kuwait: 25 March 2019

BDOAl Nisf & Partners is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of
independent member firms.



Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and its subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated statement of income

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

Continuing operations
Revenue

Revenue from sales and services

Unrealized (loss)/gain from change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Realized gain from sale offmancial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Realized gain from sale offmancial assets available for sale
Dividend income

Group's share of results from associates
Loss from partial sale of investment in associates
Change in fair value of investment properties
(Loss) /gain on sale ofinvestmient properties
Interest income

Foreign exchange (loss)/gain
Other income

Total revenue

Expenses and other charges
Cost of sales and services
General and administrative expenses
Portfolio management fees
Finance costs

Impairment loss of investment in an associate
Total expenses and other charges
(Loss)/proHt for the year from continuing operations before
contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of

Sciences (KFAS), National Labour Support Tax (NLST) and Zakat
Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences
National Labour Support Tax
Zakat

(Loss)/ proHt for the year from continuing operations

Profit from discontinued operations
Net (loss)/ profit for the year

Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests
Net (loss)/ profit for the year

Basic and dUuted (loss)/earnings per share from continued and
discontinued operations attributable to the Shareholder of Parent
Company (fUs)
Basic and dUuted (loss)/earnmgs per share from continuing
operations attributable to the Shareholder of Parent Company (fils)
Basic and dUuted (loss)/earnings per share from discontinued
operations attributable to the Shareholder of Parent Company (fUs)

Note

11

10
10

6

11

5

7

7

7

2018
KD

8,924,049

(1,634,315)

1,878,845

978,138
658, 661

32,017
(1, 545, 071)

137,681
(43,377)

8,183
9,394,811

(8,456, 515)
(2, 966,781)

(84, 674)
(1, 740,403)

(122,424)
(13,370,797)

(3, 975,986)

(3,975,986)

3,975,986

(4,010,424)
34,438

(3,975,986)

(6. 57)

(6. 57)

2017
KD

7,265,431

703,552

152, 144
1,283,744
1,885,391

(70, 678)
117,967

9,025
122,631
156,533
112,753

11,738,493

(6,226,854)
(3, 119,418)

(103, 633)
(1, 961, 650)

(11,411, 555)

326,938
(20, 159)
(73, 206)
(19, 883)
213,690

3, 065, 667
3,279,357

3, 150,506
128,851

3,279,357

5. 16

0. 14

5. 02

The notes set out on pages 11 to 67 fomi an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and its subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Note
2018
KD

2017
KD

Net (loss)/ profit for the year
Other comprehensive (loss) / income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to consolidated
statement of income:
Financial assets available for sale:
- Change in fair value
- Reversal due to sale

Reversal of reserve upon partial disposal of an associate
Exchange differences on translating of foreign operations
Group's share of other comprehensive loss of associates

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
consolidated statement of income:
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVOCF')

Total other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Parent Company
Non-confrolling interests
Total comprehensive (Ioss)/mcome for the year

(3, 975,986) 3,279,357

11
(4,453)

(248,930)

1,233, 140
(152, 144)

289
(82, 356)

(121, 054)

(300,906)
554,289)

(4,530,275

(4,339,293)
(190, 982)

(4,530,275)

877,875
4, 157,232

4,085,353
71,879

4, 157, 232

The notes set out on pages 11 to 67 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and its subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2018

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment properties
Investment in associates
Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments held-to-maturity
Accounts receivable and other debit balances

Current assets
Inventories
Accounts receivable and other debit balances

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Fixed deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Share premium
Statutory reserve
General reserve
Fair value reserve
Fair value reserve of financial assets at FVOCI
Foreign currency translation reserve
Other reserves

(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings
Equity attributable to Shareholders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Employees' end of service benefits
Term loans
Accounts payable and other credit balances

Current liabilities
Term loans

Accounts payable and other credit balances
Bank overdraft

Total Uabilities

Total equity and liabilities

fates

8

9

10
11
12
13
14
16

16
17
18
18

19
19
20
21

5

22
23

22
23
18

2018
KD

12,084,831
715,356
239,862

53,734,978

12,635,835

2,677,086
82,087,948

1,449,307
14,773,828
28,328,786

34,386
6,902,502

51,488,809
133, 576, 757

61,000,000
24,761,544

1,590,532
3,200,595

260,378
541,253

(862,171)
(3,285,814)
87,206,317

895,899
88,102,216

960,621
8,857,588
5,063,321

14,881,530

22,437,680
8,152,170

3,161
30,593,011
45,474,541

133,576,757

2017
KD

11,921,687
451,940

2,802,698
47,225,855
40, 146,931

1,502, 156
7,469,238

111,520,505

1, 355, 834
17,730,011
14,606,582

34, 695
6,983,487

40,710,609
152,231, 114

61,000,000
24,761,544

1,590,532
5,619,970
3,998,906

495,519
(756, 169)

630, 625
97,340,927

1,849,963
99, 190,890

976, 099
15,889,015

6,045,592
22, 910,706

23, 002, 842
7,066,659

60,017
30, 129,518
53,040,224

152,231, 114

The note on pages 11 to 67 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Reyadh .
Chairman

Mohammed A. Al-Asfor
Vice Chairman

^
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

OPERATING ACTBTTIES
Net (loss) /profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Unrealized loss/(gain) from change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Realized gain from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Realized gain fi-om sale of financial assets available for sale
Dividend income

Group's share of results from associates
Loss from partial sale of investment in associates
Change in fair value of investment properties
Loss /(gain) on sale of investment properties
Gain on sale of investment m subsidiaries
Interest income

Foreign exchange loss/(gain)
Provision for expected credit losses
Dq)reciation
Amortization

Finance costs

Impainnent loss of investment in an associate
Provision for employees' end of service benefits

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Inventories

Accounts receivable and other debit balances

Financial assets at fair value Ifarough profit or loss
Accounts payable and other credit balances
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences paid
National Labour Support Tax paid
Zakat paid
Employees' end of service benefits paid
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

USTVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of investment properties
Purchase of investment in associates
Proceeds from disposal of associates
Dividend income received from associates

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Proceeds from sale offmancial assets available for sale

Purchase of financial assets available for sale
Proceeds from redemption of investments held to maturity
Fixed dqsosits
Dividend income received

Interest income received

Net cash from acquisition / disposal of investment in subsidiaries
Net cash flows generated from investing activities

FINANCING ACTFVTTIES
Proceeds from term loans
Repayment of term loans
Finance costs paid
Dividend paid
Share capital repayments
Movement in non-controlling interests
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Note 18)

Non-cash transactions

Accounts receivable and other debit balances

financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Lnvestment in subsidiary
Investaient in associates

The notes set out on pages 11 to 67 form an integral part of these consoUdated financial statements.

10

2018
KD

(3,975,986)

1,634,315
(1, 878, 845)

(978, 138)
(658, 661)

(32,017)
1,545, 071

(137, 681)
43, 377

103,099
412,363
144, 165

1,740,403
122,424
223, 232

(1,692,879)

(121, 958)
(2, 950, 910)
11,311,553

(127, 749)
6,418,057

(22, 972)
(73, 496)
(20, 152)
(36,720)

6,264,717

(865, 451)
4, 172

(407,581)
1,049, 782

1,684,527
2,007,762
(142,639)

1,502, 156
309

978, 138
137,681
(6, 003)

5,942, 853

13,386,505
(21, 027, 056)

(1, 742, 534)
(2, 845, 027)

(12, 228, 112)
(20, 542)

(3,587)
6,923, 470
6, 899, 341

6,413,720
555,838
758, 181

(7, 727, 739)

2017
KD

3,279, 357

(703, 552)

(152, 144)
(1,283,744)
(1, 885,391)

70, 678
(117,967)

(9,025)
(2,809,098)

(122, 631)
(156,533)

853, 159
122, 539

1,961,650

301, 778

(650,924)

59,409
(2, 529, 175)

(2, 169)
(4, 052, 651)
(7, 175,510)

(17,890)
(7, 193,400)

(210, 622)

(574,479)
41, 820

(10,515)
523,363
595,922

1, 967, 042
(989,627)

3,529
(3, 889)

1,283,745
121,415

8,456,534
11,204, 238

14,094,893
(15, 063, 309)

(1, 961, 192)

(368, 848)
(29, 000)

(3, 327, 456)
683,382
(70,821)

6,310, 909
6, 923, 470

1,801,754
(1, 801, 754)



Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

1. Incorporation and activities

Privatization Holding Company - KPSC (the "Parent Company") is a Kuwaiti shareholding
company registered on 10 October 1994 and is listed on the Boursa Kuwait.

The Parent Company is licensed to:
. Invest in Kuwaiti and foreign shareholding companies and limited liability companies and to

participate in the establishment and management of such entities,
. Lend to such entities and act as their guarantor,
. Utilization of excess funds in investment in financial portfolios or real estate portfolios through

specialised parties inside or outside Kuwait,
. Invest in real estate, hold patents and copy rights, and advance loans to associates,
. Represent foreign consulting firms in local market.

The Group comprises the Parent Company and its subsidiaries. Details of subsidiaries are set out in
Note 5.

The Parent Company registered office is located at Sharq, Ahmad Al-Jaber Street, Dar Al-Awadi
Tower, 23 Floor, P.O. Box 4323, Safat 13104, Kuwait

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were authorized for
issue by the Parent Company's Board of Directors on 25 March 2019 and are subject to the
approval of the General Assembly of the Parent Company's shareholders. The Annual General
Assembly of the Parent Company's Shareholders has the power to amend these consolidated
financial statements after issuance.

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (D^RSs)

a) New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2018

The accoimting policies applied by the Group are consistent with those used in the previous year
except for the changes due to implementation of the following new and amended International
Financial Reporting Standards as of 1 January 2018:

Amendments to IFRS 2 - Classi ication and Measurement o Share-based Pa ment Transactions

The amendments is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, the
amendments address three main areas:

. The effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction.

. The classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding tax obligations.

. The accounting where a modification to the tenns and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-settled.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any material impact on the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 4 - Insurance contracts A I in IFRS 9 mancial instruments
The amendments is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, the
amendments address concerns arising from implementing the new standard IFRS 9 (Financial
mstruments), before implementing EFRS 17, which replaces H7RS 4. The amendments introduce
two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from applying EFRS 9
and an overlay approach.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any material impact on the Group.
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

a) New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2018

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

The standard is effective for annual periods begiiming on or after 1 January 2018, replaces the
existing guidance in IAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. EFRS 9
specifies how an entity should classify and measure its financial instruments and mcludes a new
expected credit loss model for calculating impairment of fmancial assets and the new general
hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and
derecognition offmancial instmments from IA.S 39

For the initial application ofIFRS 9 and its effects, kmdly refer to Note (2 - c) below.

IFRS 15 - Revenue irom contracts with customers

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, establishes a
comprehensive framework for detennining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It
replaces the following existing standards and interpretations upon its effective date:
. IAS 18-Revenue,
. IAS 11 - Construction Contracts,
. IFRIC 13 - Customer Loyalty Programs,
. IFRIC 15 - Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate,
. IFRIC 18 - Transfers of Assets from Customers, and,
. SIC 31 - Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

For the initial application ofIFRS 15, kindly refer to Note (2 - c) below.

IFRIC 22 - Forei n Currenc Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and clarifies
that in determinmg the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a nomnonetary asset or non-monetary liability
relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially
recognizes the non-monetary asset or nonmonetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine
a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

This interpretation did not have any material impact on the Group.

Amendments to IAS 40 Investment Pro er - Trans ers o Investment Pro er

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and clarify
when an entity should transfer property, including property under constmction or development,
into or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of
the change in use. A mere change in management's intentions for the use of a property does not
provide evidence of a change in use.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any material impact on the Group.
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

a) New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Annual Im rovements to IFRSs 2014 - 2016 C de

Amendments to IAS 28 - Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2018, with
earlier application permitted.

The amendments clarify that:
a) An entity that is a venture capital organisation, or other qualifying entity, may elect, at initial

recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its investments m associates
and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss.

b) If an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint
venture that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to
retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture
to the investment entity associate's or joint venture's mterests in subsidiaries. This election is
made separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date
on which (i) the investment entity associate or joint venture is mitially recognised; (ii) the
associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (iii) the investment entity
associate or joint venture first becomes a parent.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any material impact on the Group.

b) Standards and interpretations issued but not effective

The following new and amended IASB Standards have been issued but are not yet effective, and
have not been adopted by the Group:

IFRS 16-Leases
This standard will be effective for annual periods begiiming on or after 1 January 2019. This
standard will be replacing IAS 17 "Leases" and will require lessees to account for all leases under
a single on-balance sheet model in a similar way to finance leases under IAS 17 with limited
exceptions for low-value assets and short term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term. The new standard does not significantly change the
accounting for leases for lessors. Early application is permitted provided that IFRS 15 is applied
on the same date.

The Group are currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 and plan to adopt the new standard on
the required effective date.

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

This standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and
replaces IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts. The new standard applies to all types of insurance
contracts, regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and
financial instmments with discretionary participation features. The core ofIFRS 17 is the general
model, supplemented by:
. A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features Q/ariable fee approach).
. A simplified approach (premium allocation approach) mainly for short duration contracts.

This standard is not expected to have any material impact to the Group.
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

b) Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9: Pre a ment eatures with ne ative corn ensation

The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January, 2019, with
earlier application permitted. Under IFRS 9, a debt instmment can be measured at amortized cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are
'solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding' (the SPPI criterion)
and the instrument is held within the appropriate business model for that classification. The
amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of the
event or circumstance that causes the early teraiination of the contract and irrespective of which
party pays or receives reasonable compensation for the early termination of the contract.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact to the Group.

Amendments to IAS 28: Lon -term interests in associates and 'oint ventures

The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January, 2019, with
early application permitted. The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 to long-tenn
interests in an associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in
substance, fomi part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests).
This clarification is relevant because it implies that the expected credit loss model in BFRS 9
applies to such long-tenn interests.

The amendments also clarified that, in applying IFRS 9, an entity does not take account of any
losses of the associate or joint venture, or any impainnent losses on the net investment, recognized
as adjustments to the net mvestment in the associate or joint venture that arise from applying IAS
28: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact to the Group.

Annual Im rovements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 C de issued in December 2017

IFRS 3 - Business Combinations

The amendments apply to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January, 2019, with early application
permitted. The amendments clarify that, obtaining control of a business that is a joint operation is
a business combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring previously held interests in the
assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair value. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its
entire previously held interest in the joint operation.

IFRS 11 - Joint Arran ements

The amendments apply to transactions in which it obtains joint control on or after the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 January, 2019, with early application permitted. A party
that participates m, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain joint control
of the joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business as defmed
in IFRS 3. The amendments clarify that the previously held interests in that joint operation are not
remeasured.

14



Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

b) Standards and interpretations issued but not effective (Continued)

IAS 23 - Borrowin Costs

The amendments will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with
early application pennitted. The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general
borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of
the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete. An entity
applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact to the Group.

c) Application of new standards effective from 1 January 2018

The Group has initially adopted IFRS 9 "Financial Instmments" (see (A) below) and ffRS 15
"Revenue from Contracts with Customers" (see (B) below) from 1 January 2018 as follow:

a. IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 sets out the requirements for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non- financial items. This Standard replaces IAS 39
Financial Listmments: Recognition and Measurement.

The details of new significant accounting policies and the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies are set out below:

i. Classification and measurement of the financial assets and UabUities

IFRS 9 largely retams the existing requirements in LAS 39 for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets
held to maturity, loans and receivables and fmancial assets available for sale.

The adoption ofIFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the Group's accounting policies related
to financial liabilities. The impact of IFRS 9 on the classification and measurement of financial
assets is set out below.

Under BFRS 9, on initial adoption, the financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income - debt investments, fair value through other
comprehensive income, equity investments or fair value through profit or loss. The classification
of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial asset is measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:
- It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and
- Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

c) Application of new standards effective from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

a. IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (Continued)

i. Classification and measurement of the financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Debt investment at fair value throu h other corn rehensive income

A debt investment is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it meets both
of the following conditions and is not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:
- It is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual

cash flows and selling fmancial assets, and
- Its contractual tenns give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

E ui securities at fair value throu h other corn rehensive income

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

E ui securities at fair value throu h rofit or loss
All financial assets, other than those classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income as described above, are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income as financial asset recognized at fair value through profit or loss if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is
initially measured at the transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
recogmzed at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition.

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets.

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Financial assets

Carried at amortised cost

Debt investments at fair

value through other
comprehensive income

Equity investments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interests or dividends income, are recognised in statement
of income.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impainnent
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange profits and losses and
impairment are recognised in statement of income. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognized in statement of income.
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in statement of income. Other net
profits and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to statement of income.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in statemeat of income unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to statement of income.

16



Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

c) Application of new standards effective from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

a. IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (Continued)

i. Classification and measurement of the financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Impact of adoption ofIFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of the financial assets at 1 January 2018 is
further described below.

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table and accompanying notes show reconciliation of original measurement
categories in accordance with IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each
category of financial assets and fmancial liabilities of the Group as at 1 January 2018:

Note
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Fixed deposits
Investment held to
matunty

Equity securities a

Accounts receivable and
other debit balances b

Equity securities c
d

Equity securities

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and
other credit balances

Term loans
Bank overdraft

Original
Classification

Under
IAS39

Loans and

receivables

Loans and

receivables
Held-to-
matunty

FVTPL

Loans and
receivables

Available-for

sale

Available-for

sale

Amortized cost
Amortized cost

Amortized cost

New

classification

Under
IFRS9

Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Amortized cost
FVOCI - equity
instrument

Amortised cost

FVOCI - equity
Instrument

FVTPL

Amortized cost
Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Original
carrying
amount

under IAS
39
KD

6,983,487

34, 695

1, 502, 156

122, 343

25, 199, 249

15,235,361

24, 911, 570

13, 112, 251
38,891,857

60, 017

New
carrying

value

under
IFRS9

KD

6,983,487

34, 695

1, 502, 156

122, 343

22, 270, 429

15,235, 361

24, 911, 570

13, 112, 251
38,891,857

60,017

Impact of
adoption of

IFRS9
KD

41,310

(2, 928, 820)

4, 239, 540

(a) Under IAS 39, these equity securities were designated as at fair value through profit or loss
because they were managed on a fair value basis and their performance was mbnitored on
this basis. As at 1 January 2018, and as a result of the adoption ofIFRS 9, the management
issued irrevocable decision recognizing the changes in fair value through other
comprehensive income other than statement of income as it is strategic investments. Such
changes are more relevant to other comprehensive income as deemed by the Group.
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

c) Application of new standards effective from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

a. IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (Continued)

i. Classification of the financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b) Accounts receivable and other debit balances that were classified as loans and receivables
under IA.S 39 are now classified at amortised cost. An increase of KD 2, 928, 820 in the
allowance for impairment over these receivables was recognised in opening retained
earnings at 1 January 2018 on transition to IFRS 9. There are no accounts receivable and
other debit balances were recognised at 1 January 2018 on the adoption ofIFRS 15.

(c) These equity securities represent investments that the Group intend to hold for the long
term for strategic purposes. As permitted by IFRS 9, the Group has designated these
investments at the date of initial application as measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Unlike IAS 39, the accumulated fau- value reserve related to these
investments will never be reclassified to statement ofmcome.

(d) These equity securities represent investments that the Group intend to hold for the short
term for trading purposes. As permitted by IFRS 9, the Group has designated these
investments at the date of initial application as measured at fair value through profit or loss.
The relative profit or loss will be recognized in statement of income.

ii. Impairment of financial assets

BFRS 9 replaces the 'incurred loss' model in IAS 39 with an "expected credit loss" (ECL) model.
The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets
and debt mvestments at fair value through other comprehensive income, but not to investments in
equity instmments. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than under IA.S 39.

The financial assets at amortised cost consist of cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits and
accounts receivable and other debit balances.

Under IFRS 9, loss allowances are measured on either of the following bases:
12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and
Lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetmie ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured as 12-month ECLs:

Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reportmg date; and
Other debt securities, bank balances, and fixed deposits (i. e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

The Group has elected to measure; using the simplified approach, loss allowances for accounts
receivables and other debit balances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

18



Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

c) Application of new standards effective from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

a. IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (Continued)

ii. Impairment of financial assets Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
infonnation that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both

quantitative and qualitative infonnation and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience
and infomied credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 90 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
- The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by

the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
- The financial asset is more than 365 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expect to receive). ECLs are
discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-im aired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Presentation of im airment

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Impairment losses related to accounts receivable and other debit balances including contract
assets, are presented separately in consolidated statement of income.

Im act of the new im airment model

For assets in the scope of the IFRS 9 impairment model, impairment losses are generally expected
to increase and become more volatile. The Group has detemiined that the application ofIFRS 9's
impairment requirements at 1 January 2018 results in an additional impairment allowance as
follows.

Ex ected loss allowance as at 1 Jaauar 2018

Additional impaimient recognised at 1 January 2018 on.
Accounts receivable and other debit balances

Amount (KD)

(2,928,820)
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2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

c) Application of new standards effective from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

a. IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (Continued)

ii. Impairment of financial assets Continued)

Accounts receivables and contract assets

The following analysis provides further detail about the calculation of ECLs related to accounts
receivables and contract assets on the adoption of DFRS 9. The Group considers the model and
some of the assumptions used m calculating these ECLs as key sources of estimation uncertainty.

The ECLs were calculated based on actual credit loss experience over the past 3-5 years. The
Group performed the calculation ofECL rates for its customers.

Exposures within each Group were segmented based on common credit risk characteristics such as
credit risk grade, geographic region and industry, delinquency status, age of relationship and type
of product purchased where applicable.

Actual credit loss experience was adjusted by scalar factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical data was collected, current
conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

At 1 January 2018, as a result of adoption ofIFRS 9, the Group recorded an additional provision
for expected credit losses amounting to KD 2,928,820 (Note 16).

iii. Transition

The Group has taken an exemption not to restate comparative infonnation for prior periods with
respect to classification and measurement (including impairment) requirements. Differences in the
carrying amounts of financial assets and fmancial liabilities resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9
are recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, the
information presented for 2017 does not generally reflect the requirements ofIFRS 9 but rather
those of IAS 39.

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed
at the date of initial application.

The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.

- The designation and revocation of previous designations of certain financial assets and fmancial
liabilities as measured at fair value through profit or loss.
The designation of certain investments in equity instmments not held for trading as at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

b. IFRS 15: Revenue rom Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for detemiining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. It replaced IAS 18 "Revenue", IAS 11 "Construction Contracts" and related
interpretations, IFRIC 13, IFRIC 15, IFRIC 18 and SIC 31. It establishes a new recognition model
based on the principle of control and applying five steps on all contracts with customers.
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2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

c) Application of new standards effective from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

b. IFRS 15: Revenue rom Contracts with Customers (Continued)

The model's five steps are as follows:
. Identify the contract with the customer
. Identify the performance obligations in the contract
. Detennine the transaction price
. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts
. Recognise revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Adoption ofIFRS 15 by the Group on 1 January 2018 had no material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2017 and the consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 as majority of the Group's revenues fall within
the scope ofIFRS 15 as presented in Note (3.4).

3. Significant accounting policies

3. 1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board ("IASB"), IFRIC interpretations as issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") and Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its
Executive Regulations, as amended.

3.2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared under historical cost
convention except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, fmancial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, financial assets available for sale and investment
properties that have been measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinars ("KD"), which is the
functional and presentation currency of the Parent Company.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in compliance with the adopted ("IFRSs")
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
judgment in applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas where significant judgments and
estimates have been made in preparing the consolidated financial statements and their effect are
disclosed m Note 4.

3.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries (together the "Group"),

Subsidiaries (investees) are those enterprises controlled by the Parent Company. Control is
achieved when the Parent Company:
. has power over the mvestee;
. is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Parent Company reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:
. the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion ofholdmgs of

the other vote holders;
. potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or other parties;
. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the

current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are mcluded in the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control effectively commences until the date that control effectively ceases.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income from the date the
Parent Company gains control until the date when the Parent Company ceases to control the
subsidiary. All inter-company balances and transactions, including inter-company profits and
unrealized profits and losses are eliminated in full on consolidation. Consolidated financial
statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately
from the Group's equity therein. Consolidated statement of income and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Parent Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction. The carrying amounts of the group's ownership interests and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect changes in their relative mterests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which non-controlling interests are adjusted and fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognized directly m equity and attributable to owners of the
Parent Company. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
. Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
. Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controllmg interest;
. Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
. Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
. Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;
. Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and
. Reclassifies the Parent Company's share of components previously recognized m other

comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings as appropriate.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a
contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group
recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer. The Group
follows a 5-step process:
. Identifying the contract with a customer
. Identifying the performance obligations
. Determining the transaction price
. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

The total transaction price for a contract is allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price for a contract excludes any
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

IFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts
and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The
standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs
directly related to fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time (rather than at a point in time) when any
of the following criteria are met:
. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity's

performance as the entity performs.
. The Group's perfonnance creates or enhances an asset (e.g., work in process) that the customer

controls as the asset is created or eiihanced.

. The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Control is transferred at a point in time if none of the criteria for a good or service to be transferred
over time are met. The Group considers the following factors in determming whether control of an
asset has been transferred:

. The Group has a present right to payment for the asset.

. The customer has legal title to the asset.

. The Group has transferred physical possession of the asset.

. The customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

. The customer has accepted the asset.

Contract liabilities & assets

The Group recognizes contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied
performance obligations and reports these amounts as other liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Similarly, if the Group satisfies a perfomiance obligation before it receives
the consideration, the Group recognizes either a contract asset or a receivable in its consolidated
statement of financial position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is
required before the consideration is due.
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3. Significant accounting poUcies (Continued)

3.4 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Cost to obtain a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer are capitalized when incurred as the
Group expects to recover these costs and such costs would not have incurred if the contract has not
been obtained.

Revenue for the Group arises from:

Sale o oods

Sales represent the total invoiced value of goods sold during the year. Revenue from sale of goods
is recognized when or as the Group transfers control of the goods to the customer. For standalone
sales, that are neither customized by the Group nor subject to significant integration services,
control transfers at the point in time the customer takes undisputed delivery of the goods. Delivery
occurs when the goods have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the goods in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Renderin o services

Revenue from service contracts is recognized when the service is rendered. Revenue is recognized
over time where perfonnance obligations are generally satisfied within the fmancial period.

Construction contracts

Revenue from constmction contracts is recognized over time on a cost-to-cost method (input
method), i.e. based on the proportion of contract costs mcurred for work performed to date relative
to the estimated total contract costs. Profit is only recognized when the contract reaches a point
where the ultimate profit can be estimated with reasonable certainty. Claims, variation orders and
incentive payments are included in the determination of contract profit when approved by contract
owners. Anticipated losses on contracts are recognized m full as soon as they become apparent.

WTiere the outcome of a constmction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognized to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract
costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Rental income

Rental mcome is recognized, when earned, on a time apportiomnent basis.

Other income and ex enses

Other income and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

3. 5 Finance costs

Finance costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a time proportion basis
over the period of related liabilities.
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3.6 National Labor Support Tax (NLST)

National Labor Support Tax (NLST) is calculated at 2.5% of the profit attributable to the
shareholders of the Parent Company before contribution to KTAS, NLST, Zakat, and Board of
Directors' remuneration, and after deducting the Parent Company's share of profit from associates
and subsidiaries listed in Boursa Kuwait, share of NLST paid by subsidiaries listed in Boursa
Kuwait, and cash dividends received from companies listed in Boursa Kuwait in accordance with
Law No. 19 of 2000 and Ministerial resolution No. 24 of 2006 and theu- Executive Regulations. No
NLST has been provided for since there was no taxable profit on which NLST could be calculated.

3.7 Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS) is calculated at 1%
of the profit attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company before contribution to KFAS,
NLST, Zakat, and Board of Directors' remuneration, and after deducting the Parent Company's
share of income from Kuwaiti shareholding subsidiaries and associates, transfer to statutory
reserve, and any accumulated losses. No KFAS has been provided for since there was no eligible
profit on which KFAS could be calculated.

3.8 Zakat

Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company
before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat, and Board of Directors' remuneration, and after
deductmg the Parent Company's share of profit from Kuwaiti shareholding associates and
subsidiaries, share of Zakat paid by Kuwaiti shareholding subsidiaries and cash dividends received
from Kuwaiti shareholding companies in accordance with Law No. 46 of 2006 and Ministerial
resolution No. 58 of 2007 and their Executive Regulations. No Zakat has been provided since there
was no financial profit on which Zakat could be calculated.

3.9 Taxation

Taxation on overseas subsidiaries is calculated on the basis of the tax rates applicable and
prescribed accordmg to the prevailing laws, regulations and instmctions of the countries where
these subsidiaries operate.

3. 10 Segment reporting

The Group has two operating segments: investment and other segments. In identifying these
operating segments, management generally follows the Group's service lines representing its main
products and services. Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each requires
different approaches and other resources. All inter-segment transfers are carried out at ami's length
prices.

For management purposes, the Group uses the same measurement policies as those used in its
financial statements. In addition, assets or liabilities which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.11 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The
consideration transferred by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests
issued by the Group, which includes the fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contmgent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. For each business
combination, the acquirer measures the non-controllmg interests in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through consolidated statement of income.

The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination
regardless of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree's financial statements
prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives m host contracts by the acquiree.

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the
excess of the sum of (a) fair value of consideration transferred, (b) the recognised amount of any
non controlling interest in the acquiree and (c) acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity
interest in the acquiree, over the acquisition-date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair
values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum calculated above, the excess ainount (ie gain on a
bargain purchase) is recognised in consolidated statement of income immediately.

3. 12 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at acquisition cost or manufacturing cost,
including any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Group's management.

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured using the cost model, cost less
subsequent depreciation and impainnent losses. Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis
to write down the cost less estunated residual value of equipment. The useful life and depreciation
method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are
consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits arising from items of property, plant and
equipment. The following useful lives are applied:

Leasehold land

Office building
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Years

20
20-30
6-20
4-10

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, but at least
annually
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3. 12 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the
accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income.

3. 13 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the consolidated statement of
income in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the consolidated statement of income. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a
straight-line basis over a period of 1 to 4 years.

Intangible assets with indefimte useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impaimient
annually, either individually or at the CGU level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from. derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of income when the asset is derecognised.

3. 14 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impaimient loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.
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3. 14 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in consolidated statement of
income, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impainnent loss been recognized for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized immediately in consolidated statement of income, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase.

3. 15 Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations represent part of the Group's business, which their results and cash flows
can be separated clearly from rest of the Group, which are also:
. Represent substantial activity or separate geographic segment.
. Represent part of a coordinated plan to exclude substantial activity or separate geographic

segment.

. Include subsidiaries acquired principally for sale subsequently.

These operations are classified as discontinued operations at sale or when classification conditions
are met as discontinued operations, whichever shall first occur.

Revenues and expenses related to discontinued operations are recognised separately from revenues
and expenses related to continuing operations in the consolidated statement of income until the
profitability level of the period ended at the date of the consolidated financial statements and
comparative periods. This is even if the Group retains non-controlling interest in the subsidiary
after sale, whereas profit or loss are recognised as separate item in the consolidated statement of
income.

3. 16 Investment properties

Investment properties comprise completed property, property under constmction or re-development
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment properties are initially measured
at cost including purchase price and transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at then- fair value at the end of reporting period. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in consolidated statement of mcome
for the period in which they arise.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when
incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized.

These values are supported by market evidence and are determined by external professional valuers
with sufficient experience with respect to both the location and the nature of the investment
property.
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3. 16 Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of (i. e. at the date the
recipient obtains conta-ol) or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
futire economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Gains or losses arising on the retirement or
disposal of an investment property are recognized in consolidated statement of income.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
the end of owner occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another party. Transfers are
made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of owner occupation or commencement of development with a view to sale. If owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance
with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

3. 17 Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence which is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the associate but is not control or joint
control over those policies. Under the equity method, investment in associates are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for changes in the Group's share of the
net assets of the associate from the date that significant influence effecdvely commences until the date
that significant influence effectively ceases, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in
which case it is accounted as per IFRS 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations".

The Group recognizes in its consolidated statement of income for its share of results of operations of the
associate and in its other comprehensive income for its share of changes in other comprehensive income
of associate.

Losses of an associate in excess of the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate) are not recognized
except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate.

Gains or losses arising from transactions with associates are eliminated against the investment in the
associate to the extent of the Group's interest in the associate.

The difference in reporting dates of the associates and the Group is not more than three months.
Adjustments are made for the effects of significant transactions or events that occur between that date
and the date of the Group's consolidated financial statements. The associate's accounting policies
conform to those used by the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognized at the date of acquisition is
recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment in
associates and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. If the cost of acquisition is lower
than the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities,
the difference is recognized immediately in consolidated statement ofincoine.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment
in associate is impaired and determine if necessary, to recognize any impairment loss with respect to the
investment. If there is such evidence, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment and the Group calculates the amount of impainnent as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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3. 17 Investment in associates (Continued)

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any
retaining investment at its fair value. Any difference between the canying amount of the associate
upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retaining investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognized in consolidated statement of income.

3.18 Financial instruments

The Group classifies its fmancial instruments as financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party of the contractual
provisions of such instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the consolidated statement of fmancial position
include accounts receivable and other debit balances, investments held to maturity, fmancial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, fmancial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, fixed deposits, cash and cash equivalents, tenn loans, accounts payable and other credit
balances and baiik overdraft.

Financial assets:

Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition
To determine their classification and measurement category, IFRS 9 requires all financial assets,
except equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the entity's
business model for managing the assets and the instruments' contractual cash flow characteristics.

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objectives and in order to generate contractual cash flows.
That is, whether the Group's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets
or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash Hows arising from the sale of assets. If
neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial
assets are classified as part of 'Sell' business model and measured at FVPL. The Group's business
model is not assessed on an instmment-by-instmment basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
portfolios.

Purchases and sales of those financial assets are recognized on trade-date - the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Fmancial assets are initially recognized at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at FVPL.

A financial asset is derecognized either when: the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset have expired; or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the financial asset, but has transferred control of the financial asset. Where the Group has retained
control, it shall continue to recognize the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
in the financial asset.
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3. 18 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets: (Continued)

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified in the consolidated financial statements into the following categories
upon initial recognition:

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Debt instmments at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income.

- Equity instruments at Fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A fmancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss:
- It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

Hows; and
Its contractual tenns give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Debt instmments measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective yield method adjusted for impairment losses if any. Gains and losses are recognized in
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost consist of cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits,
accounts receivable and other debit balances and other assets classified as debt instruments at
amortized cost.

Cash and cash e uivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at banks, deposits and other short-tenn highly
liquid investments with origmal maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Term de osits

Term deposits are placed with banks and have a contractual maturity of more than three months.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due firom customers for merchandise sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business and recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Receivables which are not categorised under any of the above are classified as "other debit
balances"
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3. 18 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets: (Continued)

E ui instruments at air value throu h other corn rehensive income FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may elect to classify irrevocably some of its equity instmments
at FVOCI when they meet the definition of Equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
and are not held for trading. Such classification is detennined on an instrument-by- instmment basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instmments are never recycled to consolidated statement ofmcome.
Dividends are recognized in consolidated statement of income when the right of the payment has
been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the
cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments at FVOCI
are not subject to an impairment assessment. Upon disposal, cumulative gains or losses are
reclassified from cumulative changes in fair value to retamed earnings in the statement of changes in
equity. Interest income and dividends are recorded in consolidated statement of income.

The financial assets at FVOCI represent quoted and unquoted equity investments and funds.

Financial assets at FVPL

The Group classifies financial assets as held for tradmg when they have been purchased or issued
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of
fmancial instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of
short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value. In addition, on initial recognition, the Group may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Changes in fair value, gain on disposal, interest income and dividends are recorded in consolidated
statement of income according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been
established.

The financial assets at FVPL are represented in quoted and unquoted equity investments and funds.

Impairment of financial assets
IFRS 9 replaces the "incurred loss" model in IAS 39 with an expected credit loss (ECL) model. The
new impairment model applies to fmancial assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets and
debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, but not to investments in equity
instruments. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than under IA.S 39.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the

contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the asset's original effective interest rate.

For Contract assets and trade and other receivables, the Group has applied the standard's simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. Accordmgly, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk and assesses impainnent on a collective basis. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-lookmg factors specific to the customers and the economic environment. Exposures
were segmented based on common credit characteristics such as credit risk grade, geographic region
and mdustry, delinquency status and age of relationship where applicable.
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3. 18 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets: (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of the expected credit losses is detennined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses over the expected life of the financial instnunent. ECLs for financial assets measured at
amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets and charged to
consolidated statement of profit or loss. For debt instruments at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
charged to consolidated statement of income.

Financial liabilities

The accounting for fmancial liabilities remains largely the same as it was under IAS 39, except for
the treatment of gains or losses arising from an entity's own credit risk relating to liabilities
designated at FVPL. Such movements are presented in OCI with no subsequent reclassification to
consolidated statement of income.

Accounts a able

Accounts payable include trade and other payables. Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non - current liabilities.

Borrowin s

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognized in consolidated statement of income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Dereco nition o inancial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference m the respective canying amounts is recognized in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

0 settin o mancial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.19 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all expenses
directly attributable to the manufacturing process as well as suitable portions of related production
overheads, based on normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods is calculated using first-in
first-out method. For other items of inventory, cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordmary course of business less the costs of
completion and selling expenses. Write-down is made for obsolete and slow-moving items based
on their expected future use and net realizable value.

3.20 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long
positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For fmancial instmments not traded in an active market, the fair value is detemiined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm's length market
transactions; reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same;
a discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

3.21 Equity, reserves and other equity items

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued and paid up.

Reserves (statutory and general) represent retained amounts from annual profits being withheld in
such accounts by virtue of requirements established in the Parent Company's Memorandum of
Incorporation and Articles of Association and Companies' law and its Executive Regulations.

Other components of equity include the following:
. Foreign currency translation reserve - comprises foreign currency translation differences arising

from the translation of financial statements of the Group's foreign entities into Kuwaiti Dinars.
. Fair value reserve - comprises gains and losses relating to financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income and financial assets available for sale.
. Other reserves - mainly comprises gains and losses arismg from partial acquisition and disposal
of subsidiaries.

Retained earnings / (accumulated losses) include current year profit (loss) and prior period retained
profit/ (accumulated losses).

3.22 Share premium

This represents cash received in excess of the par value of the shares issued. The share premium is
not available for distribution except in cases stipulated by law
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.23 Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company's own shares that have been issued, subsequently
reacquired by the Group and not yet reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for
using the cost method. Under the cost method, the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is
charged to a contra equity account. When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are credited to a
separate account in shareholders' equity (treasury shares reserve) which is not distributable. Any
realized losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance on that account.
Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings, reserves, and then share premium respectively.
Gains realized subsequently on the sale of treasury shares are first used to offset any recorded
losses in the order of share premium, reserves, retained earnings and the treasury shares reserve
account. No cash dividends are paid on these shares. The issue of bonus shares increases the
number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without affecting
the total cost of treasury shares.

Where any Group's company purchases the Parent Company's equity share capital (treasury
shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs is deducted
from equity attributable to the Parent Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled or
reissued. Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any
directly attributable incremental transaction costs, is included m equity attributable to shareholders
of the Parent Company.

3.24 Dividend distribution to shareholders

The Group recogmzes a liability to make cash and non-cash distributions to shareholders of the
Parent Company when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the
discretion of the Group. A distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders of the
Parent company at the Annual General Meeting. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in
equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value

re-measurement recognized directly in equity. Upon distribution ofnon-cash assets, any difference
between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Distributions for the year that are approved after the reporting date are disclosed as an event after
the date of the consolidated statement offmancial position.

3.25 Employees' end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to its employees. The entitlement to these benefits is
based upon the employees' final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a
minimum service period in accordance with relevant labour law and the employees' contracts. The
expected costs of these benefits are accmed over the period of employment. This liability, which is
unfunded, represents the amount payable to each employee as a result of termination on the
reporting date.

With respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, the group makes contributions to the Public
Institution for Social Security calculated as a percentage of the employees' salaries. The group's
obligations are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.26 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
statements of each entity are measured using that functional cun

and items included in the financial

currency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective group
entity, using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate).
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
remeasurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at year-end exchange rates are
recognised in consolidated statement of income. Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-
end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date),
except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when fair value was determined.

Foreign operations
In the Group's consolidated financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of Group
entities with a functional currency other than the KD are translated into KD upon consolidation.
The functional currency of the entities in the Group has remained unchanged during the reporting
period.

On consolidation, assets and liabilities have been translated into KD at the closing rate at the
reporting date. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity
have been treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated into KD at the closing
rate. Income and expenses have been translated into KD at the average rate over the reporting
period. Exchange differences are charged/credited to other comprehensive income and recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. On disposal of a foreign operation, the related
cumulative translation differences recognised in equity are reclassified to consolidated statement of
income and are recogmsed as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

3.27 Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present legal or constmctive obligation as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a
provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

3.28 Contingent assets and UabUities

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements unless it is
probable as a result of past events that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle a
present, legal or constmctive obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated. Else, they are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic losses is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognized m the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an
inflow of economic benefits as a result of past events is probable
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.29 Leasing

WTiere the Group is the lessee - operating lease:
Leases m which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leasesare recognised as an
expense in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group as a lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the canying amount of the leased assets and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

3.30 Related party transactions

Related parties consist of major Shareholders, subsidiaries, associates, directors, executive officers,
their close family members and companies of which they are principal Shareholders. All related
party transactions are to be approved by management.

4. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However uncertainty about these assumptions and estunates could result m outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Significant management judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
significant judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

Classi ication o mancial instruments

On acquisition of a fmancial asset, the Group decides whether it should be classified as "at fair
value through profit or loss", "at fair value through other comprehensive income" or "at amortised
cost". BFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed
based on a combination of the Group's busmess model for managing the assets of the instmment's
contractual cash flow characteristics. The Group follows the guidance of IFRS 9 on classifying its
financial assets and is explained in Note 3.

The Grou 's status as a rind al

The Group regularly conducts a revision and assessment to determine whether its current status as a
principal or an agent in its commercial transactions has changed. Such revision and assessment
cover any change m the overall relationship between the Group and other parties dealing with the
Group, which may mean that its current status as a principal or an agent has changed. Such as if
changes occurred to rights of the Group or other parties, the Group would reconsider its current
status as a principal or an agent. Initial assessment considers market conditions that originally led
the Group to consider itself as principal working as a main principal or an agent in arrangements of
revenues contracts. The Group concluded that it works as a main principal in all contracts and
arrangements leading to revenues to the Group.
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4. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (Continued)

Significant management judgments (Continued)

Revenue reco nition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The determination of whether the revenue recognition
criteria as specified under 1FRS 15 and revenue accounting policy explained in Note 2r are met
requires significant judgment.

Classi ication o ro erties

Upon acquisition of properties, the Group classifies the properties into one of the following
categories, based on the intention of the management for the use of the properties:

Pro erties under develo ment
When the intention of the Group is to develop land in order to sell it in the future, both the land
and the constmction costs are classified as properties under development.

Pro erties held or tradin

When the intention of the Group is to sell properties in the ordinary course of business, the
properties is classified as properties held for trading.

Investment ro erties

When the intention of the Group is to earn rentals from properties or hold it for capital
appreciation or if the intention is not determined for properties, the properties are classified as
investment property.

Control assessment

When detemuning control over an investee, management considers whether the Group has a 'de
facto' power to control an investee if it holds less than 50% of the investee's voting rights. The
assessment of the investee's relevant activities and the ability to use the Group's power to affect the
investee's variable returns requires significant judgment.

Si ni icant in uence assessment

When determining significant influence over an investee, management considers whether the
Group has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee if
it holds less than 20% of the investee's voting rights. The assessment, which requires significant
judgment, involves consideration of the Group's representation on the investee's board of directors,
participation in policy making decisions and material transactions between the investor and
mvestee.

Estimates uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition
and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may
be substantially different.

Im airmento associates

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise
any impainnent loss on the Group's investment in its associated companies, at each reporting date
based on existence of any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case the Group calculates the amount of impainnent as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the
consolidated statement of income.
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4. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (Continued)

Estimates uncertainty (Continued)

Use ul lives o de reciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical
obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software and equipment.

Im airmento oodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the "value in use" of the asset or the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is
allocated.

Estimating a value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the asset or the cash-generating unit and also choose an appropriate discount rate in order to
calculate the present-value of the cash flows.

Fair value o un uoted inancial assets

If the market for a financial asset is not active or not available, the Group establishes fair value by
using valuation techmques which include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to
other instmments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models refined to reflect the issuer's specific circumstances. This valuation requires the Group to
make estimates about expected future cash flows and discount rates that are subject to uncertainty.

Valuation o investment ro erties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with change in fair values being
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The fair value of investment property is
determined by real estate valuation experts using recognized valuation techniques and the
principles of IFRS 13.

Two main methods were used to determine the fair value of the investment properties:

Income approach, where the property's value is estimated based on the income produced and is
computed by dividing the property's net operating income by the expected rate of return on the
property in the market, known as 'Capitalization Rate'.

Comparative analysis is based on the assessment made by an independent real estate appraiser
using values of actual deals transacted recently by other parties for properties in a similar
location and condition and based on the knowledge and experience of the real estate appraiser.

Im airment o non- inancial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
fau- value less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm's length transaction ofsunilar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The
cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restmcturing
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance
the asset's perfonnance of the cash generating unit being tested. The recoverable amount is most
sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future
cash inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
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4. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (Continued)

Estimates uncertainty (Continued)

Provision or ex ected credit losses o trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns
(i.e., by geographical region, services type, customer and type). The provision matrix is initially
based on the Group's historical observed default rates.

The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking infomiation.

For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product, stock market
capitalization) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the brokerage sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's actual default in
the future. The mformation about the ECL on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in Note 16.
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5. Investment in subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company
and the following subsidiaries (together the "Group"):

Held directly:
Global Projects Holding Company - K.S.C.
(Closed) ("GPHC") (a)
Specialized Enviromnental Services
Company - W.L.L. ("SES") (a)
Global Professional General Trading
Company -W.L.L.
Privatisadon Agriculture Contracting
Company W.L.L. (a)
Global Privatisation for Medical Services

Company - W.L.L. (a)
Global Specialised Electrical Company -
W.L.L. (a)
Specialized Education Company - W.L.L.
(a)
Wuduh Financial and Economic
Consulting Company - K.S.C. (Closed) (a)

Daytona Production Company - W.L.L.
(a)

Privatization Holding Company-W.L.L.
(Jordan)

PHC Renovation - LLC

Skills Entertaimnent Company - W.L.L.

Abyar Gulf Company for General Trading
and Contracting - W.L.L. ("Abyar") (b)
Leader Plus General Trading Company -
W.L.L.
Al Takhsis Al Mutamada General Trading
and Contracting Company (formerly SNC-
Lavalin Kuwait for General Trading and
Contractmg Company - W.L.L.) (a)

Held through GPHC:

ELogics System Company- S.P. C (c)
Fairy Hub General Trading Company -
W.L.L.
Held through Abyaar:
Privatization Engineering General Building
Contracting Company WLL (d)

Country of
incor oration

State of
Kuwait
State of
Kuwait
State of
Kuwait
State of
Kuwait
State of
Kuwait
State of
Kuwait

State of
Kuwait
State of
Kuwait

State of
Kuwait

The
Hashemite

Kingdom of
Jordan

USA

State of
Kuwait

State of

Kuwait
State of

Kuwait

State of
Kuwait

State of
Kuwait
State of
Kuwait

State of
Kuwait

Voting capital
held %

2018

96.0%

99.0%

62.0%

99.0%

99.0%

99.0%

99.0%

99.0%

99.0%

100%

100%

99%

50.0%

99.0%

99.0%

100%

85.0%

2017

96. 0%

99. 0%

62.0%

99. 0%

99. 0%

99. 0%

99. 0%

99. 0%

99. 0%

100%

100%

99%

50. 0%

99.0%

99. 0%

85. 0%

50. 0%

Activities

lavestment

Investment

General trading
and mvestaent

General trading
and contracting

Medical services

Electric power
generation
Educational
services

Consultancy
services

Advertising and
publishing

Manufacfairing

Real estate

Organizing
exhibitions,
conferences and
theatre production

General trading
and conta-acting

General trading
and contracting

General trading
and contracting

IT services

General trading
and contracting

General trading
and contracdng
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5. Investment in subsidiaries (Continued)

a. The non-controlling interest of these subsidiaries is owned by other parties and was waived in favor
of the Parent Company, accordingly, the Parent Company consolidated this subsidiaries as it a
wholly owned subsidiaries.

b. The Group classified its 50% investinent in "Abyar Gulf Company for General Trading and
Contracting - W.L.L. ("Abyar")" as investment in subsidiary since the management believes the
Group has the power to control the investee through key management which is also a significant
owner.

c. During the year 2018 the Group's has established ELogics System Company- S.P.C with capital of
KD 2,000.

d. During the year, investment in a subsidiary in "Privatization Engineering General Building
Confa-acting Company - W.L.L. which held through Abyar Gulf Company for General Trading and
Contracting was reclassified to investment in an associate CNote 1 1) since the Group lost control
over the financial and operating policies of the subsidiary.

Subsidiaries with material non-controllin interests

The Group's following subsidiaries have material non-controlling interests CNCI):
Proportion of

ownership interests
and voting rights
held by the non-

controlUn interests

2017

Profit(Ioss)
allocated to non-

controlling
interests

Non-controlling
interests

Abyar Gulf Company for General
Trading and Contracting - W.L.L.
("Abyar")
Individual immatehal subsidiaries
with non-controlling interest

2018
%

50%

%

50%

2018
KD

62,743

28,305

34,438

2017
KD

2018
KD

78,080 1,301,471

50, 771

128, 851

405, 572)

895, 899

2017
KD

1,996, 909

(146,946)

1, 849, 963

Summarized consolidated financial statements of Abyar Gulf Company for General Trading and Contract -
W.L.L. before inter-group eliminations, are set out below:

2018 2017
KD KD

Non-current assets 2,382, 155 1, 574, 674
Current assets 6,176,926 5,713,069
Total assets 8,559,081 7,287,743

Non-current liabilities 204, 119 170, 652
Current liabilities 5,752,020 3,881,454
Total liabilities 5,956, 139 4,052, 106
Net assets 2,602,942 3,235,637
Non-controlling interests in the books ofAbyar Gulf Company for
General Trading and Contract-W.L.L. - 758, 181
Ownership interest held by the Group 50 % 50 %
Ownership interest held by non-controlling interests 50 % 50 %
Net assets attributable to the shareholders of Parent Company 1,301,471 1,238, 728
Net assets attributable to non-controlling interests 1,301,471 1,996, 909
Total equity 2,602,942 3,235,637

Revenues 5, 110, 182 3,730, 758
Expenses (4, 984,697) (3, 574, 093)
Net profit 125,485 156,665
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6. General and administrative expenses

Staff costs

Other expenses

2018
KD

1,810,055
1,156, 726
2, 966, 781

2017
KD

1, 939, 596
1, 179, 822
3, 119,418

Basic and diluted (loss) / earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations

Basic and diluted (loss)/eammgs per share is calculated by dividing the net (loss)/profit for the year
attributable to Shareholders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year, excluding treasury shares as follows:

2018 2017
Net (loss)/profit for the year attributable to Shareholders of the
Parent Company (KD)
Net (loss)/profit for the year jBrom continuing operations (KD)
Profit from discontinued operations (KD)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding less treasury
shares (Shares)
Basic and diluted (loss)/eamings per share attributable to
Shareholders of the Parent Company (fils)
From continuing operations (fils)
From discontinued operations (fils)

(4,010,424)
(4,010,424)

610,000,000

6.57
(6. 57)

3, 150, 506
84, 839

3, 065, 667

610,000,000

5. 16
0. 14
5.02
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â
s

I
i
ua

3
.o
fl
I
ES

I
's

I
s

I
s

s

ẑ
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

9. Intangible assets

Cost:
Balance as at 31 December 2017
Additions*

Balance as at 31 December 2018

Accumulated amortisation:
Balance as at 31 December 2017

Charge for the year
Balance as at 31 December 2018

Goodwill

KD

Other intangible
assets

KJD

574,479
407, 581
982, 060

122, 539
144, 165
266, 704

Total
KD

574,479
407,581
982,060

122,539
144, 165
266,704

Net book value:

As at 31 December 2018

Cost:
Balance as at 31 December 2016
Additions

Effect of disposal of a subsidiary
Balance as at 31 December 2017

Accumulated amortisation:
Balance as at 31 December 2016

Charge for the year
Related to disposal of a subsidiary
Balance as at 31 December 2017

Net book value:
As at 31 December 2017

2,492,905

(2,492,905)

715,356

1, 167, 502
574,479

(1, 167, 502)
574,479

1, 167,502
122,539

(1, 167,502)
122, 539

451,940

*Additions during the 2018 and 2017 represent cost incurred in producing TV.

10. Investment properties

Balance at the begging of the year
Disposals (a)
Change in fair value
Balance at the end of the year

2018
KD

2,802,698
(2,594,853)

32, 017
239, 862

715,356

3, 660, 407
574,479

(3, 660, 407)
574, 479

1, 167, 502
122, 539

(1, 167, 502)
122, 539

451, 940

2017
KD

2,717, 526
(32,795)
117,967

2, 802, 698

(a) During the year 2018, a foreign property owned by one of the subsidiaries had been sold by an
amount ofKD 959, 895 which resulted in a loss ofKD 1, 546, 656 recorded in the consolidated
statement of income, also, an investment properties had been sold by an amount ofKD 89, 887
which resulted in a gain ofKD 1,585 recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

The Investment properties amounting to KD 239,862 (2017: KD 296, 147) are in the name of key
management personnel and are recorded in favour of the Group based on a waiver letter.

Fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment properties are given in Note 29. 3.
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

11. Investment in associates

The details of the Group's investment in associates are as follows:

Name of the corn an

Kuwait Building Materials
Manufacturing Company - KPSC
("KBMMC")
First Equilease for Equipment and
Transportation - K. S.C. (Closed)
("FTC") (a)
Kingdom Electricity Company -
J.S.C.C ("KEC")

Nawand Communications Holding
Company - BSC (Closed) ("Nawand")
(a)

Country of
incor oration

State of Kuwait

State of Kuwait
The Hasheimte

Kingdom of
Jordan

Kingdom of
Bahrain

E ui interest %

2018

46.99%

16%

30%

17.3%

2017

46.99%

16%

30%

17. 3%

Activities

Buildmg
materials

Transportation
services

Energy and
industrial

projects

Telecom

services

Kuwait Pillars for Financial Investment

Company - K. S.C. C. ("KPFI")
[Formerly Strategia Investment
Company - KPSC ("Strategia")]

National Industries Company - KPSC
and subsidiaries ("NIC") (a)

Middle East complex for Eng.,
Electronics & Heavy Industries PLC

State of Kuwait

State of Kuwait
The Hashemite

Kingdom of
Jordan

42.98% 42. 98%

14.12% 14.13%

41.67%

Canarde Group Consortium S.A.E.

Privatization Engineering General
Building Contracting Company WLL
(b)

Eastern United Petroleum Services

Company-KSC (Closed) ("EUPS")

Egypt

State of Kuwait

State of Kuwait

30% 30%

50%

42.78% 42. 78%

Investments

Manufacturing
and marketing
building
materials

General trading
and contracting
Generating and
maintainmg
electricity and
electricity
plant

General

Building
Contracting

Oil and gas
activities

a) Investment m FTC, Nawand and NIC have been classified as investment in associates since the
Group exercises significant influence over the these companies through representations on their
Board of Directors and participation in their decision making process in relation to their
financial and operating policies.

b) During the year, the Group lost control over a subsidiary "Privatization Engineering General
Building Contracting Company for General Contracting - W.L.L. CNote 5), accordingly, it was
reclassified to investment in an associate as the Group participation in their decision making
process in relation to their financial and operating policies.
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

11. Investment in associates (Continued)

Movement in investment in associates during the year is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year
Additions
Reclassified from investment in subsidiaries

Reclassified from financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Disposal
Impairment loss
Cash dividends received from associates

Group's share of results from associates
Group's share of other comprehensive (loss) income from
associates' cumulative changes in fair value
Group's share of other comprehensive income (loss) from
associates' foreign currency translation adjustment
Effect of adoption ofIFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018
Other reserves

Balance at end of the year

2018
KD

47,225, 855
6,413, 720

758, 181

555,838

(122, 424)
(1, 684, 527)

658, 661

(299,117)

50, 187
284,637

(106, 033)
53,734,978

2017
KD

45, 107, 752
10,515

1,746,914

(538, 013)

(595,922)
1, 885, 391

11, 359

(132,413)

(269,728)
47,225,855

Certain associates are quoted and listed in exchange markets. The carrying amount of the Group's
investment in these listed associates is KD 23, 564, 384 (2017: KD 16, 792, 487) and its market value
is KD 11,837,387 as at 31 December 2018 (2017: KD 10, 194,317).

Management has performed a review of investments in associates to assess whether impairment has
occurred and has taken impainnent ofKD 122,424 (2017: KD nil) in the consolidated statement of
mcome.
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ŷ
-3
s
h

/-s

'0'
s

I
w

I
&
V.
Si
.

's
u
0
s,
s
a

I
I

{
f^
T^

^^
Q
M

hl

I
§
I
r-1
m

§
I
i

-^ ^

I
I § .s^

's <-

l» 03

r^

-<0^ '^0 ^ ^ Its



Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

12. Financial assets available for sale

2018
KD

2017
KD

16,356,863
13, 553, 801
10,236, 267
40, 146,931

Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities
Mutual funds

At 31 December 2018, the Group held certain equity securities of related parties with a carrymg
value ofKD Nil (31 December 2017: KD 8,512, 602).

Financial assets available for sale amounting to KD Nil (31 December 2017: KD 22, 731, 753) are
pledged against certain term loans (Note 22).

Certain financial assets available for sale with amount of KD Nil (31 December 2017: KD
2, 896, 101) are registered in the name of a major shareholder of the Parent Company who
confinned in writing that they hold these equity securities on behalf of the Parent Company.

At 1 January 2018, as a result of adoption ofIFRS 9, the Group elected to reclassify financial
assets available for sale with a carrying value ofKD 15,235,361 and KD 24,911,570 to financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI") and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, respectively (Note 13 and Note 17).

13. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Quoted securities
Unquoted securities
Funds and portfolios

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI") comprise equity
securities which are not held for trading, and for which the Group has made an urevocable
election at mitial recognition to recognise changes in fair value through other comprehensive
rather than profit or loss as these are strategic investments and the Group considered this to be
more relevant.

At 1 January 2018, as a result of adoption of IFRS 9, the Group elected to reclassify financial
assets available for sale amountmg to KD 15,235,361 (Note 12) and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss amounting to KD 122, 343 (Note 17) to financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive mcome.

At 31 December 2018, the Group held certain equity securities of related parties with a carrying
value ofKD 4, 903, 268(31 December 2017: KD Nil).

Certain fmancial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income with amount of KD
2,674,330 (31 December 2017: KD Nil,) are registered in the name of a major shareholder of the
Parent Company who confirmed in writing that they hold these equity securities on behalf of the
Parent Company.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income amounting to KD 4,429,442
(31 December 2017: KD Nil) are secured against certain term loans (Note 22).

Valuation techniques of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI") are disclosed in (Note 29).
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241,651
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

14. Held-to-maturity investment

Held to maturity investment represents the amount invested in SUKUK with a local Islamic
financial institution amounting KD 1, 500, 000 carrying profit rate as of 31 December 2017 of 2%
above Central Bank Kuwait discount rate and matures on 12 August 2018.

At 1 January 2018, as a result of adoption of IFRS 9, the Group elected to reclassify investment
held to maturity amounting to KD 1,502, 156 to other financial assets at amortized cost (Note 15).

15. Other financial assets at amortized cost

Other financial assets at amortized cost represents the amount invested in SUKUK with a local
Islamic financial institution amounting KD 1,500,000 carrying profit rate as of 2% above Central
Bank Kuwait discount rate and matures on 12 August 2018.

During the year 2018, The Group redeemed its other financial assets at amortized cost in SUKUK
with a local Islamic financial institution for an amount ofKD 1, 500, 000.

16. Accounts receivable and other debit balances

Trade receivables

Amounts due from related parties (Note 25)
Interest receivable

Prepaid expenses and accrued income
Due from sale of subsidiary
Advances to supplier
Other receivables

Provision for expected credit losses (a)

a) The movement in provision for expected credit losses is as follows:

Balance at the begging of the year
Impact on adoption ofIFRS 9 (Note 2)
Charge for the year
Balance at the end of the year

Account receivable and other debit balances are represented in the following:

Non-current portion
Current portion

2018
KD

6,809, 163
3,339, 828
3,000,000

113,940

4,625,612
2,694,290

20,582, 833
(3, 131,919)
17,450, 914

iVS:
2018
KD

100,000
2,928, 820

103,099
3, 131,919

llowing:
2018
KD

2, 677, 086
14,773, 828
17,450,914

2017
KD

6,224, 857
8,060, 787
3,000,000

94, 849
5, 600, 000
1,556,815

761,941
25,299,249

(100, 000)
25, 199,249

2017
KD

100,000

100,000

2017
KD

7,469, 238
17, 730, 011
25, 199, 249
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2018
KD

10,925, 122
14,854, 554
2,549, 110

28,328,786

2017
KD

3, 486, 511
11, 064, 035

56,036
14, 606, 582

Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

17. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Quoted securities
Unquoted securities
Mutual funds

At 1 January 2018, as a result of adoption of IFRS 9, the Group elected the following
reclassifications:

- Reclassification of financial assets available for sale with a carrying value ofKD 24,911,570 to
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 12).

- Reclassification of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss with a carrying value ofKD
122,343 to financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI") (Note
13).

At 31 December 2018, the Group held certain equity securities of related parties with a carrying
value ofKD 3,349,916 (31 December 2017: KD 142,943).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounting to KD 21,937, 138 (31 December
2017: KD 14,444,689) are pledged against certain tenn loans CNote 22).

Valuation techniques of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are disclosed m
(Note 29).

18. Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits

Cash and cash equivalents included m the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise of the
following:

Cash on hand and at banks

Cash at portfolios
Short term bank deposits
Restricted cash*

Less: Bank overdraft

Cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cash flow

Fixed deposits with origmal maturity exceeding three months

* This balance represents cash restricted against bank facilities.

2018
KD

5,423,250
850,021
563,618

65,613
6,902,502

(3, 161)
6,899,341

2017
KD

3,715,732
1,724, 548

550,423
992,784

6,983, 487
(60,017)

6, 923, 470

34,386 34, 695

The effective interest rate on local and foreign short term bank deposits and fixed deposits ranges
from 0. 6% to 12. 5% (2017: 0. 6% to 13. 5%) per annum.

Bank overdraft includes a bank overdraft facility carries interest rate of 2. 5% (2017: 2.5%) per
annum above the Central Bank of Kuwait discount rate.
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

19. Share capital and share premium

The authourized, issued and fully paid capital is KD 61,000,000 divided into 610,000,000 shares
with a nominal value of 100 fils each and all shares are paid in cash.

Share premium represents cash received in excess of the par value of the shares issued. The share
premium is not available for distribution except in cases stipulated by law.

20. Statuary reserve

As required by the Companies Law and the Parent Company's Articles of Association, 10% of the
profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company before contribution to Kuwait
Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS), National Labor Support Tax (NLST), Zakat
and Board of Directors' remuneration is transferred to statutory reserve. The Parent Company may
resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the reserve exceeds 50% of the capital.
Distribution of statutory reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a
dividend of 5% of paid up share capital to be made in years when retained earnings are not
sufficient for the payment of a dividend of that amount. Since there is a net loss for the year, there
was no transfer to statutory reserve during the year.

21. General reserve

As required by the Parent Company's Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for the year
attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and
Board of Directors' remuneration is transferred to the general reserve. Such annual transfers may
be discontinued by a resolution of the shareholders' General Assembly upon recommendation by
the Board of Directors. Since there is a net loss for the year, there was no transfer to general reserve
during the year.

22. Term loans

Tenn loans obtain from local financial institutions and

carrying interest rate range from 2% to 4% per annum over
the Central Bank of Kuwait discount rate

Term loans obtain from a foreign financial institutions and
carry interest rate range from 8.5% to 9.75% per annum

2018
KD

27, 153, 074

4, 142, 194
31,295,268

2017
KD

32,467, 931

6,423,926
38,891,857

Certain financial assets available for sale, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are secured against term loans
(Note 12, 13 and 17).

Term loans are represented in the following:

Non-current portion
Current portion

2018
KD

8, 857, 588
22,437, 680
31, 295, 268

2017
KD

15, 889, 015
23, 002, 842
38, 891, 857

54



Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

23. Accounts payable and other credit balances

Accounts payable
Amounts due to related parties (Note 25)
Fixed assets payable*
Accmed expenses and other liabilities

Accounts payable and other credit balances are represented in the following:

Non-current portion
Current portion

2018
KD

853, 182
2,060, 197
6,075,985
4,226, 127

13,215,491

2018
KD

5,063,321
8,152, 170

13,215,491

2017
KD

503, 572
2,098,633
7,053, 191
3,456, 855

13, 112,251

2017
KD

6,045, 592
7,066, 659

13, 112,251

*Property, plant and equipment amounting to KD 8,963, 141 (31 December 2017: KD 9,780,616)
are secured agamst fixed assets payable (Note 8). This balance is payable in 8 installments on
annual basis and carry interest rate of 5.3% per annum.

24. Annual General Assembly

The Shareholders' Annual General Assembly meeting on 28 May 2018 had approved the
consolidated fmancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and a approve distribution
of cash dividends of 5 fils per share for the year ended 31 December 2017.

25. Related party transactions and balances

Related parties represent major Shareholders, associates, directors and key management personnel
of the Group, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties.
Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are to be approved by the Group's management.

Transactions and balances with related parties included in the consolidated financial statements are
as follows:

2018 2017
KD KD

Transactions included in consolidated statement of income:

Dividend Income 31,456 1,000
Finance costs - (35, 915)
Portfolio management fees (74) (111)
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

25. Related party transactions and balances (Continued)

Consolidated statement of financial position
Cash with portfolio manager
Financial assets available for sale (Note 12)
Financial assets at FVOCI (Note 13)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss CNote 17)
Due from related parties (Note 16)
Due to related parties (Note 23)

Amounts due from/to related parties are interest free and are receivable/payable on demand.

Compensation of key management personnel

2018
KD

2,017

4,903,268
3,349,916
3,339,828

(2,060,197)

2017
KD

2,260
8,512,602

142, 943
8,060,787

(2,098,633)

Short-tenn benefits
End of service benefits

26. Capital commitnaents and contingencies

Capital commitments
Purchase of financial assets available for sale
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Other commitments

Contingencies
At the reporting date, the Group has provided perfonnance bank guarantees to a customer and
suppliers amounting to KD 4,400,676 (31 December 2017: KD 4,518,766) from which it is
anticipated that no material liabilities will arise.

The Parent Company and Al Khair National for Stocks and Real Estate Company have provided a
guarantee to National Bank of Kuwait against a loan ofKD 36, 442, 427 (2017: KD 36, 880, 529)
assigned to a third party during 2012. This loan was rescheduled during 2013 and the principal
(excluding interest) is repayable in eleven annual installments commencing 15 June 2016.

2018
KD

502, 560
117,010
619,570

2018
KD

2,537,882
826,961

2017
KD

557, 021
156,923
713, 944

2017
KD

3, 156, 869

4,232, 701

56



1~~
T-l

^

m o
CT' <^i
^f >.£>
co m
m -i
t~~ M

'0^'
U-l
»-1

P-)
V)
00

I »-1

0\
m

v>
oo
00

.q-
1-<
1-I

^
<s.
CM
v>

I
I
m
>^1

U~l
ir>
00

w

?i
^

F^
^
'0
0
T-<

(N

(S

I

1-1
8 s

s "?

II
9\_ ^
oo'a-

S3?
*^o r^
m -q". 2^
<^c^%
^. s'2

g
in

r>)
m
00

^ ' p
<*?

0 '?-
s ~i

r~
w
t~^
^®
»
w

f?
s

10
<-1
^-(

0̂^
0
n

f-1
T
w

T
t;.
^r
<f)
.q-

Q
F.

3
in

C--
1-(

ao
F^
^
.q-
m
i~~
m
ui

I

T^
.<>
^

w
^
do

SO
0
1-^

Q
(N

I
I

^

I
fft W
^ T-l
m-00'
m HI
ri iC
^H 00

's
'0\

^
8'

CTt
m

v~l
00
00

IIS
ti "f ^

  
(S S

S, ^P

s.
f-
rr)
^1

M

s
w'

$,
w
m

0
0
t~~,
0
if)
f4
Ol
w

d
w
a

in
n
<0
t~
M

i^> '0
>n '-<
00 V)

»n o\
M

^i
^"

s^ ^®
s s
^M
!^
^

t~-
U-l

^

I
6B

1
y
02

s

I
u

.I
s-

r̂t

II
11
^ s
"al
OH 60

.«

.5
s

I
.o
y

I

1̂
+^
0
*s

s
I

Q
M

h

I
(L?

I
Q
i-H
m

i
>t
(U
£

s

I
is

£'s
.a

I
u

I
t
(Xl

?i

A <a

I

s
s

I
êg
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Privatization Holding Company - KPSC and subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

27. Segmental information (Continued)

Geographic information
The Group operates in two geographic regions; Kuwait and Non-Kuwait. The following table
shows the distribution of the Group's segment revenue and non-current assets by region:

Revenues
Kuwait
Non-Kuwait

2018
KD

8,761,932
632,879

9,394,811

2017
KD

7,711,705
4, 026, 788

11, 738,493

The revenue information above is based on the location of the assets generating the income.

Non-current assets
Kuwait
Non-Kuwait

28. Financial risk management

2018
KD

47,053,599
35, 034,349
82,087,948

2017
KD

60, 566, 611
50,953, 894

111, 520, 505

The Group's activities expose it to variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
equity price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the overall risk
management and for approving risk strategies and principles. The Group's risk management
focuses on actively securing the Group's short to medium term cash flows by mmimizing the
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. Long tenn financial investments
are managed to generate lasting returns.

The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative fmancial
instruments, for speculative purposes. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed are described below

28.1 Market risk

a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fmancial instmment
will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group mainly operates in Kuwait and the Middle East and is exposed to foreign currency risk
arising from various foreign currency exposures, primarily with respect to US Dollar, Euro,
Jordanian Dinar and Egyptian Pound. The Group's financial position can be significantly affected
by the movement in these currencies. To mitigate the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk,
non-Kuwaiti Dinar cash flows are monitored.
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28. Financial risk management (Continued)

28. 1 Market risk (continued)

a) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Group had the following net significant exposures denominated in foreign currencies,
translated into Kuwaiti Dinar at the closing rate:

2018 2017
KD KD

US Dollar
Euro
Jordanian Dinar

Egyptian Pound
Others

The foreign currency sensitivity is determined based on 5%, increase or decrease in exchange rates.
There has been no change during the year in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation
of the sensitivity analysis.

If the Kuwaiti Dinar had strengthened/(weakened) against the foreign currencies assuming the
above sensitivity, then this would have the following impact on the profit for the year and equity:

424, 897
2,372,056

41,757
641, 858
200, 967

1,434,017
3,056, 359
3,473, 570

510,075
44, 187

US Dollar
Euro
Jordanian Dinar

Egyptian Pound
Others

31 December 2018

Effect on

roHt
KD

±217,969
±118,603

±480
±32,093

±498

Effect on other

comprehensive
income

KD

±196,724

±1,608

±9,551

31 December 2017

Effect on
rofit
KD

±472, 119
±130
±409

±25,504
±948

Effect on other

comprehensive
income

KD

±400,418
±152, 688
±173,270

±1,261

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume and nature of
the transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of the Group's
exposure to the foreign currency risk.

b) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that fair values of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in the
level of equity indices and the value of the individual stocks.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly to its quoted investments. To manage its equity
price risk the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance
with the limits set by the Group.
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28. Financial risk management (Continued)

28. 1 Market risk (continued)

b) Equity price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been deteraiined based on the exposure to price risks at the
reporting date.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the effect on the changes in profit and other comprehensive
income for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 and equity would have been as follows:

Profit for

the year
KD

2018
Other

comprehensive
income

KD

Profit for

the year
KD

2017
Other

comprehensive
income

KD

Financial assets available for
sale
Financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive
mcome

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

c) Interest rate risk

±817, 843

±12,083

±546,256 ±174, 326

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes m market interest rates.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's temi loans and bank overdrafts with floating interest rates as well as fixed deposits. The
effect on Group's profit due to (increase)/decrease in the interest rate by 25 basis points, with all
variables held constant is as follows

The calculations are based on the group's financial instmments held at each financial position date.
All other variables are held constant. There is no impact on the Group's equity:

Effect on profit

2018
KD

±54,515

2017
KD

±68,423

There has been no change during the year in the methods and assumption used in preparing the
sensitivity analysis

28.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge a contractual
obligation causing the other party to incur a financial loss. Financial assets which potentially
subject the Group to credit risk consist principally of cash at banks, fixed and short tenn bank
deposits and accounts receivable. Accounts receivables are presented net of allowance for expected
credit losses.
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28. Financial risk management (Continued)

28.2 Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified model of recognizing lifetime expected credit losses for
all trade receivables as these items do not have a significant financing component. In measuring the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been assessed on a collective basis respectively and
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profile for sales over the past before December
31, 2018 and January 1, 2018 respectively as well as the corresponding historical credit losses
diiring that period. The historical rates are adjusted to reflect current and forwarding looking
macroeconomic factors affecting the customer's ability to settle the amount outstandmg. However
given the short period exposed to credit risk, the impact of these macroeconomic factors has not
been considered significant within the reporting period.

Trade receivables are written off (i. e. derecognized) when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Failure to make payments within 365 days from the invoice date and failure to engage
with the Group on alternative payment arrangement amongst other is considered mdicators of no
reasonable expectation of recovery and therefore is considered as credit impaired.

As at 1 January 2018, the Group recognized allowance for expected credit losses ofKD 2,928,820.

Financial instruments, deposits and bank balances

The Group's cash at banks and fixed deposits measured at amortized cost are considered to have a
low credit risk and the loss allowance is based on the 12 months expected loss. The Group's cash
and fixed deposits are placed with high credit rating financial institutions with no recent history of
default. Based on management's assessment, the expected credit loss impact arismg from such
financial assets are insignificant to the Group as the risk of default has not increased significantly
since initial recognition.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of financial assets
recognised at the fmancial position date, as summarized below:

2018 2017
KD KD

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash)
Fixed deposits
Accounts receivable (excluding prepayments and advances)
Held-to-maturity investments

28.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its liabilities when they fall due. To
limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources, manages assets with liquidity
in mind, and monitors liquidity on a daily basis.

6,878,279
34,386

12,711,362

19,624, 027

6,952,647
34, 695

23, 547, 585
1, 502, 156

32,037,083
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28. Financial risk management (Continued)

28.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's assets and liabilities. The
maturities of assets and liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period from
the fmancial position date to the contractual maturity date. The maturity profile for available for
sale investments is determined based on management's estimate of liquidation of those investments.

The contractual maturity profile of the financial liabilities based on undiscounted cash flow is as
follows:

Over 1
ear Total
KD KD

31 December 2018

Term loans 600,348 21,837,332 8,857,588 31,295,268
Accounts payable and other credit

Less than
3 months

KD

3 to 12
months

KD

Bank overdraft

Commitments
Contingency - guarantee

31 December 2017
Term loans

Accounts payable and other credit
balances
Bank overdraft

Coinmitments
Contingency - guarantee

5,670, 272
3,161

7,273,781

7,273,781

2,003,966

5,814, 141
60, 176

7,878,283

7, 878,283

1,481,898

23,319,230

3,364,843
4,400,676

31,084,749

20,998, 876

1,252,518

22,251,394

7,389,570
4,518,766

34, 159,730

5,063,321

13,920,909

36,442,427
50,363,336

15,889,015

6,045,592

21,934,607

36,880,529
58,815,136

13,215,491
3,161

44,513,920

3,364, 843
40,843,103
88,721,866

38,891,857

13, 112,251
60, 176

52,064,284

7,389,570
41,399,295

100,853, 149

29. Fair value measurement

29.1 Fair value hierarchy

Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of
financial position are Grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy.

The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant mputs to the measurement, as
follows:
. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities;
. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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29. Fair value measurement (Continued)

29.2 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position are as follows:

Financial assets:

Financial assets available for sale:
Financial assets available for sale at cost
Financial assets available for sale at fair value

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Held-to-maturity investment at amortised cost:

Held-to-maturity investment

Loans and receivables at amortised cost:

Accounts receivable and other debit balances (excluding prepayments and
advances)
Fuced deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments affair value through profit or loss affair value:
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Tenn loans
Accounts payable and other credit balances (excluding advances)
Baiik overdraft

2018
KD

12,635,835

12,711,362
34,386

6,902,502

28,328,786
60,612,871

2017
KD

377, 000
39, 769, 931

1,502, 156

23,547, 585
34, 695

6,983,487

14, 606, 582
86, 821,436

31,295,268
12,823.318

3,161
44, 121,747

38,891,857
13, 042, 661

60,017
51,994, 535

Management considers that the canying amounts of loans and receivable and all financial
liabilities, which are stated at amortised cost, approximate their fair values.

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest
level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the consolidated
statement of financial position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:
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29. Fair value measurement (Continued)

29.2 Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

a)

b)

31 December 2018
Level 1

KD
Level 2

KD
Level 3

KD
Total
KD

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Quoted securities
Funds and portfolio
Unquoted securities

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Quoted securities
Mutual funds
Unquoted securities

31 December 2017

Financial assets available for
sale

Quoted securities
Managed funds
Unquoted securities

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Quoted securities
Mutual funds

Unquoted securities

(a)
(b)
(c)

(a)
(b)
(c)

(a)
(b)
(c)

(a)
(b)
(c)

241, 651

10,925,122

11,166,773

Level 1

KD

13,937,995

3,486, 511

17,424,506

3,463,588

2,549,110
2,846,606
8,859,304

Level 2
KD

10,236,267
3, 838,575

56,036

14, 130,878

8,930,596

12,007,948
20,938,544

Level 3

KD

2,418,868

9,338,226

11,064, 035
22, 821, 129

241,651
3,463,588
8,930, 596

10,925,122
2,549,110

14,854,554
40,964,621

Total
KD

16,356,863
10,236,267
13, 176,801

3,486,511
56,036

11,064,035
54,376,513

M:easurement at fair value

Quoted securities
Quoted shares represent all listed equity securities which are publicly traded in stock exchanges.
Where quoted prices in an active market are available, the fair value of such investments have been
determined by reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting date (level 1) and if the market
for an investment is not active, the Group has established fair value by using valuation techniques
(Level 3).

Mutual funds

The underlying investments in these private equity funds mainly represent foreign quoted and
unquoted securities. Information for these investments is limited to periodic financial reports
provided by the investment managers. These investments are carried at net asset values reported by
the investment managers. Due to the nature of these investments, the net asset values reported by
the investment managers represent the best estimate affair values available for these investments.
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29 Fair value measurement (Continued)

29.2 Fair value measurement of financial instruments (Continued)

Measurement at fair value (Continued)

c) Unquoted securities
Unlisted securities are measured at fair value estimated using various models like discounted cash
flow model, which includes some assumptions that are not supportable by observable market prices
or rates.

d) Financial liabilities
The Group does not have any financial liabilities at fair value.

Level 3 fair value measurements

The Group's financial assets classified in Level 3 use valuation techniques based on significant
inputs that are not based on observable market data. The financial instruments within this level can
be reconciled from beginning to ending balances as follows:

2018
KD

22,821,128
(2,418,868)

91,215
377, 000

(940, 501)

1,008,570
20,938, 544

2017
KD

23, 218, 192
(5, 153, 197)

3, 640, 360

850, 145
265,629

22,821, 129

Opening balance
Transfer to level 1
Additions
Transfer from cost

Disposal
(Loss)/gain recognised in:
Profit or loss

Other comprehensive income
Closmg balance

The Group's mvestment team performs valuations of financial items for financial reporting
purposes, including Level 3 fair values, in consultation with third party valuation specialists for
complex valuations, where required. Valuation tecbiiques are selected based on the characteristics
of each instrument, with the overall objective of maximising the use ofmarket-based infonnation.

The valuation techniques used for instmments categorised in Levels 2 and 3 are described below:

Financial assets available for sale, financial assets at FVOCI and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:
The fair value of financial instmments that are not traded in an active market (e. g. unquoted
securities) is detemiined by using valuation techniques. Fair value for the underlying unquoted
securities are approximately the summation of the estimated value of underlying investments as if
realised on the consolidated statement of financial position date.
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29. Fair value measurement (Continued)

29.2 Fair value measurement of financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets available for sale, financial assets at FVOCI and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss: (Continued)

The investment managers in determining the fair value of these investments use a variety of
methods and make assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each financial
position date. Investment managers use techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis, recent
transactions prices and market multiples to detennme fair value.

Changing inputs to the level 3 valuations to reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not
change significantly amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of income, total assets, total
liabilities or total equity.

29.3 Non-Hnancial instruments

Investment properties were fair valued at 31 December 2018 and are classified under level 3 fair
value hierarchy and reconciliation is provided in (Note 10).

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation ofnon-financial assets:
Fair value of investment properties were determined using Mark to Market method, conducted by
independent valuators considering transaction prices of the property and sunilar properties. The
significant unobservable valuation input used for the puq>ose of valuation is the market price per
square foot / meter and varies from property to property. A reasonable change in this input would
result in an equivalent amount of change in fair value.

30. Capital management objectives

The Group's capital management objectives are to ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to provide adequate return to its Shareholders through the optimization of the capital
stmcture.

The capital of the Group comprise of total equity. The Group manages the capital stmcture and
makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital stmcture, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to Shareholders, return capital to Shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
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30. Capital management objectives (Continued)

This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by the total equity as follows:

Term loans
Bank overdraft

Fixed assets payable
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits
Net debt

Equity attributable to Shareholders of the Parent
Company
Total capital and net debt
Gearing ratio

31. Comparative figures

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current
year. Such reclassification does not affect previously reported equity or net profit for the year.

2018
KD

31,295,268
3, 161

6,075,985
(6,936,888)
30,437,526

87,206,317
117, 643, 843

25.87%

2017
KD

38,891,857
60, 017

7, 053, 191
7,018,182)
38,986,883

97, 340, 927
136, 327, 810

28.60%
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